# Development of an Engineering Definition of the Extent of J Singularity Controlled Crack Growth

Prepared by J. A. Joyce/USNA E. M. Hackett/DTRC

U.S. Naval Academy

David Taylor Research Center

Prepared for U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission

> 8907070099 890531 PDR NUREC CR-5238 R PDR

#### AVAILABILITY NOTICE

Availability of Reference Materials Cited in NRC Publications

Most documents cited in NRC publications will be available from one of the following sources:

- 1. The NRC Public Document Room, 2120 L Street, NW, Lower Level, Washington, DC 20555
- 2. The Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, P.O. Box 37082, Washington, DC 20013-7082
- 3. The Nutional Technical Information Service, Springfield, VA 22161

2

Although the listing that follows represents the majority of documents olded in NRC publications, it is not intended to be exhaustive.

Referenced documents available for inspection and copying for a fee from the NRC Public Document Room include NRC correspondence and internal NRC memoranda; NRC Office of Inspection and Enforcement bulletins, circulars, information notices, inspection and investigation notices; Licensee Event Reports; vendor reports and correspondence; Commission papers; and applicant and licensee documents and correspondence.

The following documents in the NUREG series are available for purchase from the GPO Sales Program: formal NRC staff and contractor reports, NRC-sponsored conference proceedings, and NRC booklets and brochures. Also available are Regulatory Guides, NRC regulations in the Code of Federal Regulations, and Nuclear Regulatory Commission Issuances.

Documents available from the National Technical Information Service Include NUREG series reports and technical reports prepared by other federal agencies and reports prepared by the Atomic Energy Commission, forerunner agency to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

Documents available from public and special technical libraries include all open literature items, such as books, journal and periodical articles, and transactions. *Federal Register* notices, federal and state legislation, and congressional reports can usually be obtained from these libraries.

Documents such as theses, dissertations, foreign reports and translations, and non-NRC conference proceedings are available for purchase from the organization sponsoring the publication cited.

Single copies of NRC draft reports are available free, to the extent of supply, upon written request to the Office of Information Resources Management, Distribution Section, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555.

Copies of industry codes and standards used in a substantive manner in the NRC regulatory process are maintained at the NRC Library, 7920 Norfolk Avenue, Bethesda, Maryland, and are available there for reference use by the public. Codes and standards are usually copyrighted and may be purchased from the originating organization or, if they are American National Standards, from the American National Standards Institute, 1430 Broadway, New York, NY 10018.

#### DISCLAIMER NOTICE

This report was prepared as an account of work sponsored by an agency of the United States Government. Neither the United States Government nor any agency thereof, or any of their employees, makes any warranty, expressed or implied, or assumes any legal liability of responsibility for any third party's use, or the results of such use, of any information, apparatus, product or process disclosed in this report, or represents that its use by such third party would not infringe privately owned rights.

NUREG/CR-5238 RF, R5 1

## Development of an Engineering Definition of the Extent of J Singularity Controlled Crack Growth

Manuscript Completed: September 1988 Date Published: May 1989

Prepared by J. A. Joyce, U. S. Naval Academy E. M. Hackett, David Taylor Research Center

U.S. Naval Academy Annapolis, MD 21402

David Taylor Research Center Annapolis, MD 21402

Division of Engineering Office of Nuclear Regulatory Research U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555 NRC FIN B6290

#### PRIOR REPORTS

Prior reports in this series are listed below:

- J. A. Joyce, "Application of the Key Curve Method to Determining J-R Curves for A533B Steel," NUREG/CR-1290, U.S. Naval Academy, Annapolis, MD (January 1980)
- J. P. Gudas, M. G. Vassilaros, J. A. Joyce, D. A. Davis, and D. R. Anderson, "A Summary of Recent Investigations of Compact Specimen Geometry Effects on the J<sub>I</sub>-R Curve of High Strength Steels," NUREG/CR-1813, DTNSRDC, Annapolis, MD (November 1980).
- 3. J. A. Joyce, "Instability Testing of Compact and Pipe Specimens Utilizing a Test System Made Compliant by Computer Control," NUREG/CR-2257, U.S. Naval Academy, Annapolis, MD (March 1982).
- 4. J. A. Joyce, "Static and Dynamic J-R Curve Testing of A533B Steel Using the Key Curve Analysis Technique," NUREG/CR-2274, U.S. Naval Academy, Annapolis, MD (July 1981).
- M. G. Vassilaros, J. P. Gudas and J. A. Joyce, "Experimental Investigation of Tearing Instability Phenomena for Structural Materials," NUREG/CR-2570, Rev. 1, DTNSRDC, Annapolis, MD (August 1982).
- J. A. Joyce, "Development and Verification of Conditions for Ductile Tearing Instability and Arrest," NUREG/CR-4528, U.S. Naval Academy, Annapolis, MD (February 1986).
- J. A. Joyce and E. M. Hackett, "Application of the Key Curve and Multispecimen Techniques to Dynamic J-R Curve Testing of Alloy Steel," NUREG/CR-4579, U.S. Naval Academy, Annapolis, MD (April 1986).
- J. A. Joyce and C. S. Schneider, "Application of Alternating Current Potential Difference to Crack Length Measurement During Rapid Loading," NUREG/CR-4699, U. S. Naval Academy, Annapolis, MD (August 1986).
- J. A. Joyce and E. M. Hackett, "Development of an Analytic Key Curve Approach to Drop Tower J-R Curve Measurement," NUREG/CR-4782, DTNSRDC, Annapolis, MD (December 1986).
- J. A. Joyce and E. M. Hackett, "Transition Range Drop Tower J-R Curve Testing of A106 Steel," NUREG/CR-4818, DTRC, Annapolis, MD (February 1987).
- J. A. Joyce, "Ductile to Brittle Toughness Transition Characterization of A533B Steel," NUREG/CR-5142, DTRC, Annapolis, MD (June 1988).
- J. A. Joyce, D. A. Davis, E. M. Hackett, and R. A. Hays, "Application of the J-Integral to Cases of Large Crack Extension," NUREG/CR-5143, DTRC, Annapolis, MD (February 1989).

#### ABSTRACT

An experimental definition is proposed for the extent of singularity controlled behavior in a J-resistance fracture test. The singularity zone is defined in terms of a constant ratio of plastic crack opening displacement and normalized crack extension. Justification for this definition is given in terms of experimental results on compact specimens of three steel alloys of varying material toughnesses and in terms of a simple analytical model.

The experimental limit can be evaluated from the data normally obtained during an unloading compliance single specimen J integral resistance curve experiment. Generally the experimental singularity limit extends the region of test validity well beyond that which is presently allowed by the ASTM J-R test standard, E1152.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

-

Abs	tract • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	iii
Tab	le of Contents	v
List	of Figures	vii
List	of Tables	viii
Ack	nowledgements	ix
Intr	oduction · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1
1.0	BACKGROUND	1
	1.1 Observations from Experiment	1
	1.2 Deformation J Equations	2
	1.3 Modified J Equations	5
2.0	EXPERIMENTAL PROCEDURE	6
	2.1 On the Presence of a Singularity	6
	2.2 Material and Specimen Characterization	6
	2.3 Normalized Load Displacement Records	6
	2.4 J Resistance Curves · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	11
	2.5 Definition of a Singularity Region	11
3.0	ANALYSIS	21
	3.1 Development of a Simple Analytical Model	21
	3.2 Evaluation of the Model Equations	25
4.0	DISCUSSION OF RESULTS	26
5.0	CONCLUSIONS	26
BIBL	IOGRAPHY	31

## List of Figures

	Pa	ige
Figure 1	Contour Path Integral Definition of J	3
Figure 2	Key Curve Normalized Plot for the 3% Nickel Alloy (FYB).	8
Figure 3	Key Curve Normalized Plot for the A710 (GFF) Alloy	9
Figure 4	Key Curve Normalized Plot for the A533B -H13 Alloy	10
Figure 5	Deformation J Resistance Curves to Large Crack Extensions for the 3% Nickel Alloy.	12
Figure 6	Modified J Resistance Curves to Large Crack Extensions for the 3% Nickel Alloy	13
Figure 7	Deformation J Resistance Curves to Large Crack Extensions for the A710 Alloy.	14
Figure 8	Modified J Resistance Curves to Large Crack Extensions for the A710 Alloy.	15
Figure 9	Deformation J Resistance Curves to Large Crack Extensions for the A533B -H13 Alloy.	16
Figure 10	Modified J Resistance Curves to Large Crack Extensions for the A533B -H13 Alloy.	7
Figure 11	Definition of an Engineering Singularity Limit in Terms of the Loss of Intense Crack Growth	.8
Figure 12	The Effect of Specimen Size on the Plot of $\delta_{\rm pl}/W$ Versus Crack Extension	9
Figure 13	Blunting Only Behavior as Demonstrated by the High Toughness A710 Alloy	0
Figure 14	The Effect of Specimen Size on the Plot of $\delta_{pl}/W$ Versus Crack Extension for the High	
	Toughness Alloy	2
Figure 15	The Specimen Crack Length is Shown to Have a Strong Effect on the Singularity Limit	3
Figure 16	The Simple J Analysis Model Shows that Elevation in J Beyond the Singularity Limit is Due to the Weakening Crack Growth Conditions.	3
Figure 17	The Model in Terms of Modified J Show More Distinctly the Effect of the Loss of Singularity.	9

### List of Tables

	Page
Table 1	Tensile Properties for Alloy Steels $70^{\circ}F$ · · · · · · · · · · · 7
Table 2	Chemical Composition of Alloys (Wt%)
Table 3	Model Fitting Coefficients

W

W

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This study was sponsored by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission under Interagency Agreement RES-78-104. The program manager is Mr. Michael Mayfield of the Materials Engineering Research Branch, Office of Nuclear Regulatory Research, USNRC. The authors would like to acknowledge the assistance of Mr. Stan Womack of DTRC, Annapolis, Mrs. Ruth Chittum and Ms. Inez Johnson of the U.S. Naval Academy, Annapolis, Maryland.

#### Introduction

The objective of this report is to present recent work which attempts to define the limits of the J singularity controlled crack extension in a bend type fracture mechanics test specimen. Both analytical<sup>(1)</sup> and computational<sup>(2)(3)</sup> techniques have been applied to this task in the past and have led to size criteria presently utilized in the  $J_{IC}$  and J-R curve test standards, i.e. ASTM E813 and ASTM E1152, respectively. When applied to experimental data these limitations have not corresponded to observed experimental phenomena which could be identified as due to a loss of singularity for the particular test. This would seem to lead to the conclusion that either the singularity was not present before the aforementioned criteria was reached, or that it still existed after the criteria were exceeded.

#### 1.0 BACKGROUND

#### 1.1 Observations from Experiment

Experimental work was described in a previous report<sup>(4)</sup> in which standard unloading compliance J-R curve tests were conducted to large crack extensions. The results used the J equations of ASTM E1152 and the  $J_M$  (J modified) formulation of

Ernst<sup>(5)</sup>. The observations of this previous work can be stated briefly as follows:

1. For scaled compact specimens of materials with a range of toughnesses, the deformation J-R curve was found to be remarkably size independent to crack extensions as large as 60% of the initial uncracked ligament.

2. Deformation J-R curves continued to rise even to these large crack extensions.

3. No limit to the J singularity was apparent from the J-R curves for any of the materials tested.

4. The  $J_M - R^{(4)}$  curves, on the other hand, demonstrated strong size dependence with small specimens developing a sigmoidal shape rising distinctly above the corresponding  $J_M - R$  curves of larger specimens. These differences amongst specimens occurred after about 30% of crack extension and were most distinct in the low toughness alloys.

5. The  $J_M$ -R curves were relatively size independent only for the highest toughness alloy which exceeded all standard J size requirements before measurable crack extension was found.

Additional experimental work performed recently has verified the above observations. A major objective of this work is to look more closely at this data set, to clarify this rather confusing situation, and where possible to generate meaningful limitations to the useful extent of the J-R curve. In a later section, a simple model for J is developed giving J in terms of two simpler relationships which can be readily fit to experimental data. This model is then used in the following sections to answer some basic "what if" questions – which lead, in due course, to some desired answers.

#### 1.2 Deformation J Equations

The original J integral formulation by  $\operatorname{Rice}^{(6)}$  was that (see Fig. 1):

$$J = \oint_{\Gamma} \left[ W dy - T_{i} \cdot \frac{\partial u_{i}}{\partial x} ds \right]$$
(1)

where

W =  $\int \sigma_{ij} d\epsilon_{ij}$  is the strain energy density

 $\Gamma$  = the path of the integral

ds = increment of distance along the contour  $\Gamma$ 

 $T_i = \text{tractions on the contour } \Gamma$ 

 $\overline{u}_i$  = a displacement component in the direction of  $T_i$ .

This equation is useful for analysis and for computational methods but it is not a good starting point to develop J estimates for laboratory specimens. An equivalent form for J was presented by  $\operatorname{Rice}^{(7)}$  as:

$$J = -\int_{0}^{\delta} \frac{\partial P}{\partial a} d\delta = \int_{0}^{P} \frac{\partial \delta}{\partial a} dP$$
(2)

where P is the load applied to the specimen and  $\delta$  is the resulting load point displacement.

Equation (2) was used successfully by Begley and Landes<sup>(8)(9)</sup> to do experimental J integral work, but it is far from convenient. A further simplification was obtained by Rice et. al.<sup>(7)</sup> who combined Eq. (2) with the observation that for bending geometries

$$\theta = F\left[\frac{M}{b^2}\right] \tag{3}$$

where b is the remaining uncracked ligament and M is the applied moment, and obtained for J that:

$$J = \frac{2}{5} \int_{0}^{\theta} M d\theta = \frac{2}{5} \int_{0}^{\delta} P d\delta .$$
 (4)

Equation (4) is only exact for the case of deeply cracked bend bars. It does relate the J integral directly, however, to an easily measured quantity, the area under the specimen load displacement record.



Figure 1 - Contour Path Integral Definition of J

For the standard compact specimen, Merkle and  $Corten^{(10)}$  presented a modification of Eq. (4) to account for the additional tensile loading component which can be expressed in the form<sup>(11)</sup>:

$$J = \frac{\beta A}{Bb}$$
(5)

where:

 $\beta = 2(1 + \alpha)/(1 + \alpha^2)$ 

B = specimen thickness

A = area under specimen load displacement record

 $\alpha = \left[ \left[ \frac{2a}{b} \right]^2 + 2 \left[ \frac{2a}{b} \right] + 2 \right]^{1/2} - \left[ \frac{2a}{b} + 1 \right]$ 

a = crack length

b = uncracked ligament

While the above equations are adequate for experimental work for initiation J, i.e.  $J_{IC}$  evaluation as per ASTM E813, they are not suitable for the case of crack growth as is the case in J resistance (J-R) curve measurement. For the case where crack growth is present, Ernst et. al.<sup>(12)</sup> proposed an incremental evaluation of J as:

$$J_{i+1} = \left[J_i + \left[\frac{\eta}{b}\right]_i A_{i,i+1}\right] \left[1 - \left[\frac{\gamma}{b}\right]_i \left[a_{i+1} - a_i\right]\right]$$
(6)

where  $\gamma$  and  $\eta$  are geometry dependent parameters and  $A_{i,i+1}$  is the area under the specimen load displacement record between point i and point i+1. Equation (6) is based on deformation plasticity assumptions and calculates J at a crack length  $a_f = a_0 + \Delta a$  as if the specimen had the final crack length from the start of loading. The applicability of deformation plasticity to elastic plastic fracture testing was discussed in the previous report<sup>(4)</sup> in terms of a series of blunt notched specimen tests. The principle conclusions of that report were that deformation plasticity appeared to work well even when large crack extensions were present, but not so well when large specimen deformations were present.

Equation (6) was utilized in ASTM E1152 with only one modification, the separation of J into elastic and plastic components. In this case then

$$J = J_{EL} + J_{PL}$$
(7)

$$J_{EL(i)} = \frac{(K_i)^2 (1 - \nu^2)}{E}$$
(8)

where

$$K_{i} = \left[P_{i}/(BB_{N}W)^{1/2}\right] \cdot f(a_{i}/W)$$
(9)

with:

$$(a_{i}/W) = \frac{\left[ (2 + a_{i}/W)(0.886 + 4.64 a_{i}/W)^{2} - 13.32(a_{i}/W)^{2} + 14.72(a_{i}/W)^{3} - 5.6(a_{i}/W)^{4}) \right]}{(1 - a_{i}/W)^{3/2}}$$

and:

$$J_{pl(i)} = \left[J_{pl(i-1)} + \begin{bmatrix}\eta_i\\b_i\end{bmatrix} \frac{A_{pl(i)} - A_{pl(i-1)}}{B_N}\right] \cdot \left[1 - \gamma_i \frac{(a_i - a_{i-1})}{b_i}\right]$$

where:

$$\eta_{\rm i} = 2.0 + 0.522 \, {\rm b_i/W}, \text{ and}$$
  
 $\gamma_{\rm i} = 1.0 + 0.76 \, {\rm b_i/W}.$  (10)

**6**.

The integration of Eq. (2) is obtained in Eqs. (7–9) by trapezoidal approximations over which the crack length is assumed constant and small steps are required for accurate J evaluation using this form. This becomes more crucial as the remaining ligament, b, becomes small.

#### 1.3 Modified J Equations

More recent work by Rice et. al.<sup>(13)</sup> has investigated the evaluation of J for growing cracks. Their results seem to suggest that when appreciable crack extension is present, a J resistance curve can depend on the type and size of the specimen used for its experimental determination.  $\text{Ernst}^{(5)}$  has proposed a modified J quantity which is corrected to first order to eliminate this proposed dependence on specimen size and type. The details of this analysis are left to reference (5) but the resulting equation is:

$$J_{M} = J - \int_{a_{0}}^{a} \left[\frac{\partial J_{pl}}{\partial a}\right]_{\delta_{pl}} da .$$
(11)

where  $\delta_{pl}$  is the plastic component of the applied load line displacement. Ernst simplifies this for experimental geometries by substituting the approximate relationship that

$$\left[\frac{\partial J_{pl}}{\partial a}\right]_{\delta_{pl}} = -m \frac{J_{pl}}{b}$$
(12)

where m is a function of crack length and specimen geometry to give:

$$J_{M} = J + \int_{a_{0}}^{a} \frac{m}{b} J_{pl} da$$
(13)

In the sections that follow, both J and  $J_M$  resistance curves are evaluated for large crack extensions for compact specimens of a range of sizes and toughnesses. These evaluations are carried out well beyond accepted J and crack extension limits and the results need careful critical appraisal.

#### 2.0 EXPERIMENTAL PROCEDURE

#### 2.1 On the Presence of a Singularity

The presence of a singularity in an elastic plastic fracture toughness specimen is difficult to experimentally verify. Computational techniques<sup>(14)</sup> do verify the path independence of J and the equivalence of the various equations for its evaluation. The analysis of Paris and Hutchinson<sup>(15)</sup> argues that if strain components remain proportional, the J singularity can, in fact, exist even with some crack growth, but does not identify to what extent growth consistent with a J singularity might exist for a given specimen configuration.

Since the nonlinear elastic J integral singularity reduces to the elastic stress intensity factor for cases of fully elastic material behavior, and the singularity has been well verified, it certainly seems likely that a J singularity might exist for low toughness materials, for limited amounts of crack growth. Such a singularity should act to produce the most intense conditions for crack growth, and as the singularity weakens, the amount of crack growth per increment of specimen deformation should be reduced as well.

#### 2.2 Material and Specimen Characterization

The three materials analyzed in this report are a 3% Nickel alloy steel, an A710 high strength low alloy steel, and an A533B pressure vessel steel. The tensile mechanical properties of these steels are shown in Table 1 and the chemistries are shown in Table 2. All specimens were 1/2T, 1T, or 2T compact specimens. The A710 and 3% Nickel alloys were tested in the T-L orientation while the A533B steel was tested in the L-T orientation. All tests were performed using an unloading compliance technique according to ASTM E1152 except that the loading was continued until large crack extensions were present.

#### 2.3 Normalized Load Displacement Records

Data plots which have been looked at to try to gain insight into the existence of a singularity using the data of reference (4) are shown in Figs. 2–4. On these three figures a normalized load,  $PW/Bb^2$ , is plotted versus  $\delta_{pl}/W$  and it can be seen that this format causes the load displacement relationships of various sizes of specimens to plot on a single curve. The three curves demonstrate that this result is insensitive to the material toughness and yield strength. This formulation is a useful observation and will be utilized further below, but it does not yield directly any insight into the presence or loss of a singularity for the materials.

	Code	.2% Yield Strength (psi)	Tensile Strength (psi)	% Elongation	% R.A
3% Nickel	FYB	89000.	106000.	32.	80.
A710	GFF	74000.	87000.	23.	63.
A533B	H13	64150.	90000.	26.	60.

Table 1 Tensile Properties for Alloy Steels 70°F

Table 2 Chemical Composition of Alloys (Wt%)

	С	Mn	Р	S	Cu	Si	Ni	Cr	Mo	V	Ti	Cb
3% Nickel	0.153	0.33	0.012	0.013	0.033	0.18	2.55	1.66	0.37	0.003	<.001	
A710	0.04	0.59	0.005	0.004	1.17	0.25	0.90	0.70	0.19	0.003	0.06	0.03
A533B-H13	0.19	1.28	0.012	0.013	areastan.	0.21	0.64		0.55			





Key Curve Normalized Plot for the A710 (GFF) Alloy. Figure 3.



Figure 4. Key Curve Normalized Plot for the A533B -H13 Alloy.

The singularity expected near an elastic-plastic notch or crack tip would be predominantly a strain singularity. The experimentally measured load is thus likely to be very weakly dependent on whether or not a singularity is present at a crack tip in a standard test geometry. On the other hand, if the specimen is at its limit load, this is no guarantee that a strain singularity is not still present and controlling the local conditions for crack growth.

#### 2.4 J Resistance Curves

Figures 5 to 10 show typical deformation J and modified J resistance curves presented previously<sup>(4)</sup>. Here the deformation J-R curves seem to maintain the desired uniformly rising shape and are consistent for various specimen sizes. The modified J resistance curves, on the other hand, show a tendency to rise after approximately 30% growth of the crack has occurred, and the resulting resistance curves are then strongly size dependent. Careful crack length measurements, and blunt notch specimen tests, were done as part of the work in reference (4) to verify the accuracy of the J resistance curves developed, and this work has shown that accuracies of both J and  $\Delta a$  should be within 10% even after the large crack extensions had occurred.

For the lower toughness materials, like the 3% Nickel steel of Fig. 5, a J singularity is expected for the initial region of crack growth, but as shown, the J-R curve continues to consistently rise to large J values and large amounts of crack extension. The labeled boxes on the figures show the valid ASTM E1152 regions presently thought to define bounds to the region of J controlled growth. Nothing seems to occur on the J deformation resistance curve which could be taken to imply a loss of singularity even well beyond this "valid" box. Does the singularity not exist inside the box? Does the singularity continue to exist outside the box? How can one define meaningful engineering limits to the region of J? These questions need a more complete answer before J is used in critical fracture analyses, and a partial answer now seems to be forming – as shown in the next section.

#### 2.5 Definition of a Singularity Region

Figure 11 shows a typical plot of the normalized crack opening displacement versus normalized crack extension for various size specimens of the 3% Ni material.

Figure 11 shows a region of slow crack extension as a function of specimen bend angle, referred to here as initial crack blunting, followed by a region of more intense crack growth, which is then followed by a third region of ever slower crack extension. For this alloy, each size specimen generates a separate curve, as shown in Fig. 12, with smaller specimens giving more elevated results. It is shown in the next section that this observation is consistent with the presence of a singularity for these specimens. The third region also seems consistent with a gradual loss of singularity conditions and the point where this region starts is labeled on Fig. 11 as the "limit of singularity" region for these specimens.

The initial blunting line shown on Fig. 11 is taken to have the functional form:

$$\frac{\delta}{W} = 2 \frac{\Delta a}{W} . \tag{14}$$

The slope of two was chosen here because of observed agreement with data obtained for the high toughness A710 alloy (Fig. 13). This alloy does not appear to demonstrate a





gure 6. Modified J Resistance Curves to Large Crack Extensions for the 3% Nickel Alloy.











.

N.





11/10/201



region of singularity controlled, crack growth, at least for this specimen size. Larger values of slope are probably present for other geometries. In any case, the slope of two corresponds to a specimen in which large amounts of plasticity are present and little fracture is occurring.

Figure 14 shows the same type of plot for the high toughness A710 material including results for three scaled compact specimen sizes. The resulting curves for the  $\frac{1}{2}$ T and 1T scale specimens are now coincident and correspond well throughout their length with the initial blunting behavior as defined by Eq. (14). The 2T compact shows a region of separation from the initial blunting slope but it is not very distinct or very extensive for this alloy.

While the 3% Nickel alloy of Fig. 11 clearly defines a singularity controlled region, the A710 alloy seems to show only notch or COD blunting. The 3% Nickel alloy starts with some blunting, develops a singularity, and then the singularity dissipates as the crack again returns to blunting near the specimen back wall. These changes cannot be seen in terms of load dominated plots like the J-R curve or the key curve normalized load plots, but they are defined clearly by a plot like that of Figs. 11 or 12 and also by the  $J_M$ -R curve, which is sensitive to this final loss of singularity. Figures 13 and 14 do not show these distinct regions for the HSLA alloy.

Figure 15 shows the corresponding plot for three 1T specimens with different crack lengths for the A533B -H13 alloy. This figure demonstrates the increased constraint demonstrated by this alloy for crack lengths near the center of the specimen ligament. The two specimens with a/W values of 0.55 and 0.61 show singularity behavior while the specimen with a/W in excess of 0.75 shows only blunting behavior, apparently feeling the proximity of the specimen back wall.

## 3.1 Development of a Single Analytical Mode

The incremental equations used to evaluate J from experimental data presented in the earlier section as Eqs. (6 to 10) are very useful but they do not give much insight into the effects of the various quantities which contribute to the final J value. An analytical model based on simpler relationships which can be demonstrated experimentally can give some of this insight. For example, if a load displacement relationship of the form

$$\frac{PW}{Bb^2} = Fl = k(\delta_{pl}/W)^n$$
(15)

accurately represents the experimental observations for a series of specimens as described above, J can be evaluated from Eq. (2) as:

$$J = J_{EL} + \int_{0}^{\delta_{pl}} \frac{2 b k}{W} \left[\frac{\delta_{pl}}{W}\right]^{n} d\delta_{pl} - \int_{a_{o}}^{a} \frac{2 k}{n+1} \left[\frac{\delta_{pl}}{W}\right]^{n+1} da$$
(16)

If only small crack extension was present the second integral can be ignored and J could be evaluated in terms of the initial uncracked ligament  $b_0$  as:





$$J = J_{EL} + \frac{2b_{o}k}{n+1} \left[\frac{\delta_{pl}}{W}\right]^{n+1}$$
(17)

For the case of interest here, however, large crack extensions are involved and the a and b dependent terms of Eq. (16) must be kept. To proceed, then, requires a relationship between  $\frac{\delta_{p1}}{W}$  and  $\frac{\Delta a}{W}$ , i.e.

$$\frac{\Delta a}{W} = F\left[\frac{\delta p l}{W}\right] \tag{18}$$

Using the trends shown in Figs. 11-15, a linear relationship is taken here of the form

$$\frac{\Delta a}{W} = k_2 \frac{\delta p l}{W} + k_1 \tag{19}$$

where  $k_2$  and  $k_1$  are fitting coefficients. By noticing that

$$\frac{\mathbf{b}}{\mathbf{W}} = \frac{\mathbf{b}}{\mathbf{W}} - \frac{\Delta \mathbf{a}}{\mathbf{W}} = \frac{\mathbf{b}}{\mathbf{W}} - \mathbf{k}_2 \frac{\delta \mathbf{p} \mathbf{l}}{\mathbf{W}} - \mathbf{k}_1 \tag{20}$$

and substituting E. (20) in Eq. (16) gives, after some manipulation, that:

$$J = J_{EL} + 2k \left[\frac{b_0}{W} - k_1\right] \int_0^{\delta_{pl}} \left[\frac{\delta_{pl}}{W}\right]^n d\delta_{pl}$$
$$- 2kk_2 \left[\frac{n+2}{n+1}\right] \int_0^{\delta_{pl}} \left[\frac{\delta_{pl}}{W}\right]^{n+1} d\delta_{pl}$$
(21)

Carrying out these integrations gives

$$\frac{J}{W} = \frac{J}{W} \frac{EL}{W} + \frac{2k}{n+1} \left[ \frac{\delta_{pl}}{W} \right]^{n+1} \left[ \left[ \frac{b_{o}}{W} - k_{1} \right] - k_{2} \left[ \frac{\delta_{pl}}{W} \right] \right]$$

or

$$\frac{J}{W} = \frac{J}{W} \frac{EL}{W} + \frac{2k}{n+1} \left[\frac{\delta pl}{W}\right]^{n+1} \left[\frac{b}{W}\right] .$$
(22)

Re-substituting Eq. (19) gives a J-R curve form that

$$J = J_{EL} + \frac{2kW}{n+1} \left[ \frac{b}{W} - \frac{\Delta a}{W} \right] \left[ \frac{\Delta a}{k_2 W} - \frac{k_1}{k_2} \right]^{n+1}$$
(23)

which shows explicitly the crack extension dependence of the model. Because of the W in the 2kW/(n+1) coefficient in Eq. (23), a size independent J-R curve will result only if  $k_2$  and/or  $k_1$  are W dependent. If  $k_1$  and  $k_2$  are W independent J/W should plot consistently versus  $\Delta a/W$  for specimens of different scales, at least if the  $b_0/W$  values are identical.

For small crack extensions Eq. (23) gives a power law shaped J-R curve, but when the crack length changes dramatically, J reaches a maximum and the J-R curve subsequently declines.

Repeating the above analysis for J<sub>M</sub> gives:

$$\frac{J}{W} = \frac{J}{W} \frac{E}{L} + 2k \left[\frac{\delta}{W} \frac{p}{l}\right]^{n+1} \left[ \left[\frac{b}{W} - k_1\right] \frac{1}{n+1} - \frac{k_2}{n+2} \left[\frac{\delta}{W} \frac{p}{l}\right] \right]$$

$$= \frac{J}{W} \frac{E}{L} + \frac{2k}{n+1} \left[\frac{\delta}{W} \frac{p}{l}\right]^{n+1} \left[\frac{b}{W} + \frac{\Delta a}{(n+2)W} - \frac{k_1}{n+2}\right]$$
(24)

Equation 24 shows that  $J_M$  is elevated over J of Eq. (22) by the presence of the additional terms in the bracket, nonetheless for large  $\Delta a$ , this function will ultimately also reach a maximum  $J_M$  value and start to decrease.

#### 3.2 Evaluation of the Model Equations

Using standard fitting procedures the coefficients k, n,  $k_1$  and  $k_2$  can be evaluated for the specimens described in the previous sections. These coefficients are tabulated in Table 3. Points to notice from this Table are the following:

- 1) The coefficients k and n are consistent between large and small size specimens of all materials.
- 2) The coefficients k<sub>1</sub> and k<sub>2</sub> are specimen size dependent for lower toughness materials and become less size dependent for higher toughness specimens.

Note that Eq. (23) states that, if all fitting coefficients are the same for two sizes of geometrically scaled specimens, J/W versus  $\Delta a/W$  will be identical for the two specimen sizes, while J versus  $\Delta a$  will not. Size dependent  $k_1$  and  $k_2$  coefficients must be present for a singularity based J-R curve, i.e. a size independent  $J-\Delta a$  function to exist.

Figures 16 and 17 show the calculated results from the model Eqns. (23-24) in comparison with the results of the experimental J and  $J_M$  equations.

The model curve fits the unloading compliance data in the region where Eq. 19 fits the data of Fig. 11, i.e., in the singularity zone. If Eq. 19 is used beyond the singularity limit the model J resistance curve deviates distinctly from the unloading compliance results, reaches a maximum J value and then falls. Which of these J resistance curves is correct is not presently known and it is felt that only data in the singularity zone should be used at this time.

Similar correspondence between the model and the unloading compliance data is found if  $J_M$  is used as shown on Fig. 17. Again, when Eq. 19 is used beyond the

singularity limit the model resistance curve deviates distinctly from the unloading compliance result. The unloading compliance data is curving up because of a gradual loss of singularity conditions at the crack tip while the model curves down, probably representing a limit to the specimen capacity.

#### 4.0 DISCUSSION OF RESULTS

It seems logical that singularity controlled crack growth conditions would be the most intense crack growth conditions felt by an elastic-plastic cracked body. This argument is the principal reason the central portion of Fig. 11 is labeled as the singularity controlled zone. Beyond this zone it is felt the singularity conditions are weakening and less intense crack growth is occurring, i.e. the crack growth is returning to a plasticity controlled "blunting" behavior. If this occurs, the amount of driving force per unit crack extension should be elevated, and this corresponds to a tendency for the J-R curves to rise. This effect is demonstrated first in the  $J_M$ -R curve by the

development of a distinct upward curvature, but it is present also in the deformation J-R curve which artificially continues to rise even when it should reach a maximum and start to fall, if standard incremental equations are used beyond the singularity zone. This could be looked upcu as a fortuitous result since it adds to the effective capacity of small specimens – but it is also possibly dangerous if it leads to an application of results without a true understanding of what is occurring.

The model used in the previous analysis shows, that if one fits the center region of the  $\Delta a/W$  versus  $\delta_{pl}/W$  record with a straight line function, the upward curvature of the J<sub>M</sub> and J resistance curves is removed. The model, then, demonstrates what the J resistance curves should be if singularity conditions were in some way maintained – possibly by the use of a larger specimen. Elevation of the experimental curves above the model predictions should be treated with suspicion.

These calculated curves are probably more accurate representations of the J-R curve than that which is obtained from applying standard incremental equations to data which exhibits the apparent reestablishment of crack tip blunting, generating artifically elevated J-R curves.

#### 5.0 CONCLUSIONS

Engineering limits to the applicability of J based resistance curves are not experimentally determinable in terms of load dominated quantities like key curve plots or J resistance curves. Real limits to the applicability of the J integral are much more apparent in a plot of crack extension versus the plastic component of crack mouth opening displacement or specimen bend angle. These plots show a region of initial crack blunting, a region of singularity controlled crack growth, and finally a gradual return to crack blunting. The delineations between these zones are much more apparent on a plot of  $\Delta a$  versus  $\delta_{pl}$  than on a standard deformation J resistance curve.

Specimen	Size	k	n	k <sub>1</sub>	k <sub>2</sub>
3% Nickel	Sternisteren ander en	nedanar (managanananan arawa ana ana			
FYB A1 FYB A2 FYB S1 FYB S2	$\begin{array}{ccc} 1T & CT \\ 1T & CT \\ 1/2T & CT \\ 1/2T & CT \\ 1/2T & CT \end{array}$	55870. 55070. 52860. 53180.	$\begin{array}{c} 0.064 \\ 0.061 \\ 0.056 \\ 0.059 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.005 \\ 0.002 \\ 0.010 \\ 0.003 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.263 \\ 0.255 \\ 0.328 \\ 0.423 \end{array}$
<u>A710</u>					
GFF 3 GFF 4 GFF 6	1/2T CT 1/2T CT 1/2T CT 1/2T CT	54040. 54630. 58060.	0.107 0.107 0.090	0.013 0.016 0.02	$1.877 \\ 1.897 \\ 1.876$
GFF 30 GFF 31 GFF 32 GFF 33 GFF 34	$\begin{array}{ccc} 1T & CT \\ 1T & CT \end{array}$	46800. 49670. 49516. 47420. 48317.	$\begin{array}{c} 0.103 \\ 0.110 \\ 0.103 \\ 0.103 \\ 0.108 \end{array}$	0.017 0.007 0.012 0.006 0.005	$     \begin{array}{r}       1.965 \\       1.889 \\       2.079 \\       2.014 \\       1.579     \end{array} $
GFF 50 GFF 51 GFF 52	$\begin{array}{ccc} 2T & CT \\ 2T & CT \\ 2T & CT \\ 2T & CT \end{array}$	44450. 43680. 45160.	0.097 0.104 0.106	003 0.001 0.008	$1.570 \\ 1.705 \\ 1.579$
A533B-H13					*****
JB4 E3 13A	$\begin{array}{ccc} 1T & CT \\ 1T & CT \\ 1T & CT \\ 1T & CT \end{array}$	37800. 38270. 35890.	0.0798 0.0951 0.0922	$\begin{array}{c} 0.027 \\ 0.023 \\ 0.039 \end{array}$	0.486 0.697 1.36

## Table 3 Model Fitting Coefficients



N



While normalized load displacement plots and J–R curves are generally insensitive to specimen scales, a plot of  $\Delta a/W$  versus  $\sigma_{\rm pl}/W$  is strongly scale dependent. While the insensitivity of the former plots is valuable for material characterization and design, the sensitivity of the latter plot should be a valuable aid to the study of the effects of specimen size and constraint, allowing development of methodologies of matching or overmatching constraint to assure that conservative laboratory tests are indeed conducted. It also seems possible that  $k_1$  and  $k_2$  fitting coefficients can be evaluated and related to specimen size so that extrapolations to larger size specimens can be developed in terms of the truly size dependent variables in the fracture process.

The specimen size dependence demonstrated by the modified J of Ernst appears to be a clear indicator of a loss of singularity in these specimens reduced on deformation J resistance curves and can lead to the use of the data outside a region of singularity controlled crack growth. This is now an extrapolation and should be accepted as such and used only with the utmost caution. Other methods of J resistance curve extrapolation based only on data in the singularity controlled region are presently the object of research.

#### BIBLIOGRAPHY

- Paris, P. C., Discussion to J. A. Begley and J. D. Landes in <u>Fracture Mechanics</u>, ASTM STP 514, American Society for Testing and Materials, 1972, pp 21-22.
- Shih, C. F., deLorenzi, H. G., and Andrews, W. R., "Studies on Crack Initiation and Stable Crack Growth," <u>Elastic-Plastic Fracture</u>, ASTM STP 668, J. D. Landes, J. A. Begley, and G. A. Clarke, Eds., American Society for Testing and Materials, 1979, pp 65-120.
- 3. Booth, B. C., Newman, J. C., Jr., and Shivakurman, K. N., "An Elastic-Plastic Finite-Element Analysis of the J-Resistance Curve Using a CTOD Criterion," ASTM 18th National Symposium on <u>Fracture Mechanics</u>, Boulder, CO, 1985.
- Joyce, J. A., Davis, D. A., Hackett, E. M., and Hays, R. A., "Application of the J Integral and Modified J Integral to Cases of Large Crack Extension," NUREG/CR5143, USNRC, Washington, D.C., 20555, 1988.
- Ernst, H. A., "Material Resistance and Instability Beyond J-Controlled Crack Growth," <u>Elastic-Plastic Fracture: Second Symposium, Volume I - Inelastic Crack</u> <u>Analysis</u>, ASTM STP 803, C. F. Shih and J. P. Gudas, Eds., American Society for Testing and Materials, 1983, pp I-191-I-213.
- Rice, J. R., "A Path Independent Integral and the Approximate Analysis of Strain Concentration by Cracks and Notches," <u>Journal of Applied Mechanics</u>, Vol. 35, 1968, pp 379-386.
- Rice, J. R., Paris, P. C., and Merkle, J. G., "Some Further Results of J-Integral Analysis and Estimates," Progress in Flaw Growth and Fracture Toughness Testing, ASTM STP 536, 1973, pp 231-245.
- 8. Begley, J. A., and J. D. Landes, "The J-Integral as a Fracture Criterion," ASTM STP 514, Philadelphia, PA, 1972, pp 1-20.
- Landes, J. D., and J. A. Begley, "Test Results from J-Integral Studies: An Attempt to Establish a J<sub>IC</sub> Testing Procedure," ASTM STP 560, Philadelphia, PA, 1973, pp 170-186.
- Merkle, J. G., and H. T. Corten, "A J-Integral Analysis for the Compact Specimen, Considering Axial Force as well as Bending Effects," Transactions of the ASME, November, 1974, pp 286-292.
- Clarke, G. A., and Landes, J. D., <u>Journal of Testing and Evaluation</u>, Vol. 7,, No. 5, September 1979, pp 264-269.
- Ernst, H. A., Paris, P. C., and Landes, J. D., "Estimations on J-Integral and Tearing Modulus T from a Single Specimen Test Record," Fracture Mechanics: Thirteenth Conference, ASTM STP 743, Richard Roberts, Ed., American Society for Testing and Materials, 1981, pp 476-502.
- Rice, J. R., and Sorensen, E. P., Journal of Mechanics and Physics of Solids, Vol. 26, 1978, pp 163-186.

- Bakker, A., "The Three Dimensional J-Integral," WTHD No. 167, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Delft University of Technology, Delft, Netherlands, November, 1984.
- 15. Hutchinson, J. W., and Paris, P. C., "Stability Analysis of J Controlled Growth," ASTM STP 668, Philadelphia, 1979, pp 37-64.

1

NRC FORM 335 U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION BIBLIOGRAPHIC DATA SHEET (See instructions on the reverse) 2. TITLE AND SUBTITLE	1. REPORT NUMBER (Assigned by NRC, Add Vol., Supp., Rev., and Addendum Numbers, if any.) NUREG/CR-5238				
Development of an Engineering Definition of the Extent of J Singularity Controlled Crack Growth	3 DATE REPORT PUBLISHED MONTH VEAR MOY 1989 4. FIN OR GRANT NUMBER B6290				
J.A. Joyce, USNA E.M. Hackett, DIRC	6. TYPE OF REPORT Technical 7. PERIOD COVERED (Inclusive Dates)				
B PERFORMING ORGANIZATION - NAME AND ADDRESS (II NRC. provide Division. Office or Region, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comm name and mailing address.) U.S. Naval Academy Annapolis, MD 21402 David Taylor Research Center Annapolis, MD 21402	nssion, and mailing address, if contractor, provide				
<ul> <li>B. SPONSORING ORGANIZATION - NAME AND ADDRESS III NRC. type "Same as above". Il contractor. provide NRC Division. Office and mailing address.)</li> <li>Division of Engineering Office of Nuclear Regulatory Research U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555</li> <li>10. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES</li> </ul>	or Region, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission.				
An experimental definition is proposed for the extent of singularity controlled behavior in a J-resistance fracture test. The singularity zone is defined in terms of a constant ratio of plastic crack opening displacement and normalized crack extension. Justification for this definition is given in terms of experimental results on compact specimens of three steel alloys of varying material toughnesses and in terms of a simple analytical model. The experimental limit can be evaluated from the data normally obtained during an unloading compliance single specimen J integral resistance curve experiment. Generally the experimental singularity limit extends the region of test validity well beyond that which is presently allowed by the ASIM J-R test standard El152.					
12. KEY WORDS/DESCRIPTORS (List words or phrases that will assist researchers in locating the report.) J singularity fracture toughness ductile fracture J controlled crack growth	13. AVAILABILITY STATEMENT Unlimited 14. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION (This Page) Unclassified (This Report) Unclassified 15. NUMBER OF PAGES 16. PRICE				

NRC FORM 335 (2-89)

\* U. S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING DEFICE:1989-241-590:00117

## UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20555

19.19

OFFICIAL BUSINESS PENALTY FOR PRIVATE USE, \$300

120555139531 1 1AN1RF1R5 US NRC-OADM DIV FOIA & PUBLICATIONS SVCS TPS PDR-NUREG P-209 WASHINGTON DC 205 20555 SPECIAL FOURTH CLASS RATE POSTAGE & FEES PAID USNRC

PERMIT No. G-67

NUREG/CR-5238

DEVELOPMENT OF AN ENGINEERING DEFINITION OF THE EXTENT OF J SINGULARITY CONTROLLED CRACK GROWTH

**MAY 1989**